
Page 1 of 1 
 

SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
Council Chambers, 115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
Tuesday, July 8, 2014  6:30 p.m.    
www.surfsidebeach.org  -   (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 

 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

 
1.   CALL TO ORDER, Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
      A. Rev. Jeff Wood, Oasis of Hope Church 
      B.   Pledge of Allegiance, Mayor Samples 
 

3.   PUBLIC HEARING  - Pursuant to §6-1-80 of the SC Code of Laws public hearing on the addition of 
 municipal fees to include rental fees for the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and the Floral Clubhouse. 
 
4.  AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
5.   MINUTES APPROVAL - Regular Meeting June 23, 2014 

 
6.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 
 
7.   COMMUNICATIONS 
 A.   Department Reports 
  i.   Fire   
  ii.   Planning, Building & Zoning 
  iii.  Police  
 B.   Administrator’s Report - Update on Current Events 
      
8.   BUSINESS 
 A.   Second Reading Ordinance #14-0781 to amend §2-39(a) Agenda to establish authority to create,  
  and 2-54(a) and (b) Appearance of Citizens to clarify agenda topic comments and number of  
  speakers, Administrator Fellner 
 B.   First Reading Ordinance #14-0782 to Establish Rental Fees for the Dick M. Johnson Civic  
  Center and the Floral Clubhouse, Recreation Supervisor Ellis  
 C. Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful Re-appropriation, Hanging Baskets, Administrator Fellner   
 
9.   DISCUSSION –  Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council. 
 
10.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 
 
11.   COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
12.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 A.   Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, appointment, compensation,   
  promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee 
 B. Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(2) to discuss proposed contractual arrangements 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

http://www.surfsidebeach.org/�


 

Page 1 of 7 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  2 
  JUNE 23, 2014  6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.  Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, 7 
Mayor Pro Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, Mabry, Magliette and Stevens were in 8 
attendance.  A quorum was present.  Others present:  Town Administrator Fellner; Town Clerk Herrmann; 9 
Finance Director King; Public Works Director Adair; Police Lieutenant Hofmann, and Recreation Supervisor 10 
Ellis.    11 
 12 
 2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.   13 
 14 
 A.  Invocation:  Fire & Police Chaplain Carmen Carella gave the invocation.  Mr. Carella is also a lay 15 
minister at Garden City Baptist Church. 16 
  17 
 B.  Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Samples lead the Pledge. 18 
 19 
 3.  AGENDA APPROVAL.  Mr. Johnson moved to approve the agenda.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All 20 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 21 
 22 
 4.  MINUTES APPROVAL.  Ms. Mabry moved to approve the minutes of the June 5, 2014 budget 23 
workshop as submitted.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Ms. Mabry moved 24 
to approve the minutes of the June 9, 2014 regular meeting as submitted.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in 25 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.   Ms. Mabry moved to approve the minutes of the June 14, 2014 special 26 
meeting as submitted.   Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  27 
 28 
 5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items (3 minutes.)  Ms. Holly Watson, North Oak Drive, believed 29 
there were other ways to bring in revenue and lower expenditures so a tax increase would not be necessary.  30 
She suggested that the road tax money be used for stormwater projects in the town’s rights-of-way and under 31 
the roads.  Ms. Watson said the proposed budget did not reflect revenue from proposed sale of current assets, 32 
and asked how that would be handled.  She encouraged the town to find grant writers to generate revenue 33 
streams for necessities.  Ms. Watson expressed appreciation for Town Council’s work, and said hopefully the 34 
budget could be held closer to actual numbers instead of best guesses. 35 
 36 
 Mayor Samples called recess at 6:37 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 6:43 p.m. 37 
 38 
 6.  COMMUNICATIONS. 39 
 40 
 A.  Town Hall Reception Upgrade, Ms. Kerry Ann Dame, Posh Living, LLC.  Ms. Dame presented 41 
a color board with a variety of fabrics, colors, and furniture types for Town Council’s consideration.  Mayor 42 
Samples asked Ms. Dame to meet with the town administrator so appropriate recommendations could be 43 
brought to council. 44 
 45 
 B.  Department Reports. 46 
 47 
 i.  Finance.  Ms. King presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  General fund revenue 48 
exceeds expenditures this year to day by $125,000.  Revenue exceed the prior year by $650,000, which is due 49 
to three major items:  (1) moving parking revenue to general fund increasing the general fund by $180,000; (2) 50 
transfers from other funds were increased by $120,000, and (3) Non-recurring revenue in the amount of 51 
$226,000, which included fixed asset sales that are not accounted for until sold.  The amount includes 52 
insurance claims in the amount of $19,000 and under-ground utility reimbursement from Santee Cooper in the 53 
amount of $185,000.  The utility reimbursement was planned for FY12-13 fiscal year, but payment was 54 
received this fiscal year.  Local business licenses and permit fees exceed last year by $38,000.  Renewals are 55 
slightly ahead of last year.  During May there were six new business licenses:  2 new rentals; 2 new 56 
contractors, and 2 new businesses located outside the town.  Salaries and benefits exceeding last year due to 57 
the inclusion of salaries previously charged to hospitality funds, wages paid for storm cleanup, and the 58 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

increased cost of benefits.  Capital projects fund expenditures for this year total $122,000 for various 59 
stormwater projects and lake maintenance.  Expenditures are less than anticipated, because some projects 60 
were pushed to the next fiscal year.  Accommodations tax expenditures total $455,000 for beach events, 61 
beach patrol and advertising with the Chamber of Commerce.  State accommodations revenue has decreased 62 
by $22,000.  Hospitality collections exceed last year by $29,000; the fund revenue has decreased overall due 63 
to parking revenue being transferred to the general fund.  Local accommodations taxes year-to-date total 64 
$112,000, which is $1,000 above last year’s total.  Revenue for admissions and rent for the pier equal 65 
$192,000, exceeding last year by $22,000.  Parking has netted the pier $53,000 this fiscal year.  Sanitation 66 
fund revenue exceeds last year by $180,000; net revenue equals $195,000 this fiscal year.  Lanier Parking 67 
Solutions parking and citation revenue collected equals $263,000.  Parking management expenses equal 68 
$117,000, netting $146,000.  Other parking expenses equal $28,000, which nets $118,000 total this fiscal year 69 
for parking.    70 
 71 
 Mr. Magliette asked if the town had received any FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency) 72 
reimbursement for the winter ice storm.  Ms. King recently attended a seminar where she learned that the 73 
State was just receiving reimbursement for the 2011 ice storm.  She estimated that there is at least a two-year 74 
lag for reimbursement.  Mayor Samples said that was important for Town Council to consider.  Mr. Magliette 75 
asked if reimbursement was at 90-percent.  Mr. Adair said there is a scale:  the first 30 days gets 76 
reimbursement at 85-percent; 30 to 60 days at 80-percent, beyond 60 days is 75-percent.    77 
 78 
 Mr. Stevens asked whether $180,000 or $263,000 equaled the total parking revenue.  Ms. King said 79 
$180,000 was the increase in the general fund over last year.  The total parking revenue was $263,000.  Mr. 80 
Stevens believed that Ocean Boulevard meters only generated 8-percent of revenue, and asked if progress 81 
was made on contacting vacant lot owners to create additional parking.  Mayor Samples said that question 82 
should be asked of the administrator. 83 
 84 
 Mayor Samples asked how the town accounted for revenue received when its assets were sold.  Ms. 85 
King said from an accounting standpoint, it depended on whether there was a trade-in or sale.  If there is a 86 
sale, the revenue was booked when it was received.  It is was traded-in, there would be a net amount 87 
budgeted for the purchase.  Mayor Samples asked if the $280,000 budgeted for a new truck was a trade-in 88 
value.  Mr. Adair said it is the price for a brand new truck.  The old truck would probably be sold outright on 89 
Gov-Deals.      90 
 91 
 ii.  Public Works.  Mr. Adair presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  Residential 92 
service delivered eight carts per owners’ requests.  One cart was repaired and ten carts were replaced.  The 93 
sanitation supervisor responded to six calls regarding ordinance enforcement;  23 calls regarding late put outs 94 
and/or questions about bulk/yard debris pick up, four calls involving billing questions, 26 calls concerning 95 
winter and summer roll-out services, three miscellaneous calls, and eight complaints.   Commercial service 96 
routes continue to be updated based on business needs.  Thirty accounts increased dumpster pick-up service.  97 
Nine accounts required extra pick-up services due to overflow.  The supervisor explained commercial 98 
collection schedules to five new businesses:  Sunrise Cleaning, Low Country Tops Wrecker Service, Old Blue 99 
Chair, Hair Studio, LLC, and Seaside Stones, LLC.  The new front-end loader trash truck was delivered and 100 
will be put into service next week.  May collections included 421.51 tons of solid waste, 41.99 tons of mixed 101 
debris, 203.78 tons of yard debris,  and 52.58 tons of recyclables.  Swash outlets were being dug out as 102 
needed to ensure proper water flow.  The beach was being raked three times a week, weather permitting.  103 
Beach trash and recycle cans are being checked and serviced at least three times a week and on weekends.  104 
On-going and special projects include: Tim’s Construction continues work on the 3rd Avenue South Channel 105 
Bank Stabilization project; crews completed major drainage repairs and maintenance along 3rd Avenue South, 106 
and two reports were sent to Santee Cooper identifying street lights that were not working.  The streets 107 
anticipated to be repaved this fiscal year were moved to next year, because the paving contractor had yet to 108 
respond to Mr. Adair’s calls.  Those streets will receive priority.  Crews replaced the Little Tykes slide at Fuller 109 
Park.  Repairs were made to the “Special Needs” swing harness at All Children’s Park.  From May 22nd 110 
through June 18th mechanics completed 77 repairs on town vehicles and equipment.  Preventive or scheduled 111 
maintenance was performed on 54 vehicles and/or equipment.  The facilities completed repairs and 112 
renovations at the civic center, and also made some repairs at the rescue squad building.  An additional 9-foot 113 
bicycle rack was installed at the pier.  Four umbrellas were installed by the benches, and some lighting repairs 114 
were made.       115 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 116 
 Mayor Samples asked if the existing front loader truck was being traded or sold.  Mr. Adair said it 117 
would be sold.  Mayor Samples said the sale would create unbudgeted revenue.  He asked Mr. Adair to advise 118 
Town Council of the amount received for the sale.   119 
 120 
 Mr. Stevens asked when the stormwater projects would begin on 3rd Avenue North and 16th Avenue 121 
North.  Mr. Adair said bids were received; he expected work would begin within a month.    Mr. Stevens 122 
encouraged everyone to go see the project at 3rd Avenue North and Ocean Boulevard that incorporated the 123 
newest technology; it was an example of tax money well spent.  He applauded Mr. Adair for his decision on 124 
this project.   125 
 126 
 Mr. Magliette asked if the town could apply for a PARD (South Carolina Parks and Recreation 127 
Department) grant to buy more bicycle racks to place at every beach access.  Mr. Adair did not know, but if 128 
multiple racks were ordered at one time, the purchase might qualify for a PARD grant.  Over the last few years 129 
the town has added six bicycle racks.    130 
  131 
 iii.  Special Events and Recreation.  Ms. Ellis presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  132 
The Farmers Market continues on Tuesdays and is averaging 18 to 20 vendors each week.  Sunday 133 
Serenades continue on Sundays at the Passive Park.  Glenn Hanson reported that attendance has been as 134 
high as 80 people.  Movies After Dark began June 12.  Attendance has been between 80 and 100 people.  135 
Sophia’s is handling the concessions and is doing extremely well.  They have lowered prices from those 136 
charged last year by the previous owners.  The 4th of July Celebration entertainment will be “Garth Brooks & 137 
Friends” from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  Fireworks display begins at 9:30 p.m.  Concessions of hot dogs, 138 
hamburgers and drinks will be sold by SAFER, and  4th of July t-shirts will be available for $5.00 each.  Free 139 
ice cream will be available to the first 500 children.  Kids Fair is Monday, July 14th at Fuller Park.  There will be 140 
inflatables, pizza, drinks, and ice cream for the first 500 children ages 10 & under.  Vendors including Palace 141 
Theatre, Children’s Museum, Horry County Solid Waste Authority, and Horry County Parks & Recreation will 142 
be in attendance.  New York Life Insurance will be making free child ID cards.   Piggly Wiggly will provide free 143 
watermelon slices.  Entertainment will be provided by DJ Jeff Benton.  Flyers were presented for the Meet N’ 144 
Greet Breakfasts that being in August.   145 
 146 
 C.  Administrator’s Report – Update on Current Events.  Ms. Fellner said several calls were 147 
received about excessive garbage at the pier last Saturday.  A car was parked in the center parking aisle, 148 
which prevented the garbage from being picked up by the front end loader that must traverse that aisle to 149 
access the dumpster.  The parking spots where the truck needs to cross are being posted for no parking 150 
between midnight and 6:00 a.m.  Offenders will be towed in the future to allow the truck to access the 151 
dumpster.  A link to the magazine is now on the town website homepage.  Everyone was encouraged to email 152 
the link to their friends and family as it was a wonderful marketing tool for the town.  If the budget was adopted 153 
tonight including the provision to fund Phases 1 to 3 of the north side stormwater project, Ms. Fellner wanted 154 
to award the project to the low bidder, PSI of Conway whose bid was $578,803.18.  Bids ranged from that low 155 
amount up to over $1 million.  Ms. Fellner sent a spreadsheet of the submitted bids to Town Council, and 156 
would send confirmation of the award.  Coffee with a Cop is July 1st from 7:30 a.m. to 9:30 a.m. at Benjamin’s 157 
Bakery & Café at 810 3rd Avenue South.  K-9 Biko will be there to greet everyone.  She hoped everyone would 158 
attend. 159 
  160 
 Mr. Stevens asked Ms. Fellner if any progress was made on negotiating with owners of vacant on or 161 
near the boulevard lots for parking.  Ms. Fellner called everyone, but not everyone had responded.  There is 162 
definite interest, but Town Council has yet to provide direction as there were many variables to be determined 163 
and cleared before parking could be implemented.  Work should begin now for the next parking season.   164 
Mayor Samples asked Ms. Fellner if she had options for council consideration.  Ms. Fellner asked if council 165 
was interested in moving forward, because the elder owners take inquiries very seriously.  She did not want to 166 
mislead anyone.  Her instruction was to find out if there was interest, and it has been determined that there is 167 
interest.  Mayor Samples asked Ms. Fellner to provide location details and then council could decide how to 168 
proceed.  Mr. Childs said Mr. Servant at Surfside Realty Company may be able to help locate some of the 169 
owners.  Mayor Samples said at some point the town attorney would need to be involved to represent the 170 
town.  Once the properties are identified, a workshop or special meeting could be called.  Mr. Stevens wanted 171 
to direct Ms. Fellner to move forward to find out who was interested.  Mayor Samples explained interest had 172 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

already been determined, but there were still many variables and legal issues to be resolved before Town 173 
Council acted.  Mr. Pellegrino reminded councilmembers that the parking committee recommendations were 174 
not yet received, which might affect this process.  He supported the plan.  Ms. Mabry reiterated the need for 175 
legal counsel, because mistakes seemed to be very costly.   176 
 177 
 7.  BUSINESS.   178 
 179 
 A.  Second Reading of Ordinances 180 
 181 
 i.  #14-0779 to adopt FY 2014-2015 Municipal Budget, Director King.  Mayor Samples said council 182 
met several times to discuss the budget and asked for a motion.  Ms. Mabry moved to adopt second reading of 183 
Ordinance $14-0779 to adopt Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Municipal Budget.  Mr. Childs seconded.   184 
 185 
 Mr. Pellegrino said the town had a good, constructive budget process with a series of meetings.  He 186 
believed that council took a spending turn at the end of the June 14th meeting, when a large amount of 187 
expenditures were added to the budget, i.e. $300,000 for stormwater projects.  Obviously, there were issues 188 
on the north end that were already being addressed and were funded with existing funds.  He believed the 189 
$300,000 should be split over the next three fiscal years.  Mr. Pellegrino said he could not support the 190 
ordinance as proposed. 191 
 192 
 Mr. Stevens said the budget continually showed more expenses than revenue.  In his opinion, that 193 
was not fiscally conservative, and therefore, he could not support the budget. 194 
 195 
  Mayor Samples, and Councilmembers Childs, Johnson, and Mabry voted in favor.  Mayor Pro 196 
Tempore Pellegrino, and Councilmembers Magliette and Stevens voted against.  MOTION CARRIED. 197 
 198 
 Mayor Samples said the town would award the contract for the three phases of the stormwater 199 
projects.  This budget fully funds those projects that had been deferred for at least two years.  The budget sets 200 
aside very close to $500,000 for beach renourishment.  A few years ago, there were zero dollars set aside for 201 
beach renourishment.  The budget uses monies in fund balances for the purposes for which the monies were 202 
saved, for instance to pave roads.  Since 2009, less than one mile of roads per year has been repaved.  The 203 
money has just been accumulating, but cannot be used for other purposes.  The town must maintain its 204 
assets, and this council intends to do so.  It has been 12 years since a tax increase; hopefully, it will be 12 205 
years or longer before another tax increase is needed.  Mayor Samples appreciated all the effort that all 206 
councilmembers put into this budget process.  He believed this budget would enable to town to operate 207 
efficiently and effectively.  A few years ago there was a cash flow problem; that should never (speaker’s 208 
emphasis) occur.   209 
  210 
 ii.  #14-0777 to amend §2-208 Bidding & Quotation Requirements and Approval Authority, 211 
Administrator Fellner.  Mr. Childs moved to adopt second reading of Ordinance #14-0777 to amend §2-208 212 
Bidding & Quotation Requirements and Approval Authority with an amendment to change the $1,000 limitation 213 
to $2,500 throughout the ordinance.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  Mr. Childs explained that council discussed this 214 
during the budget process.  A $2,500 limit would expedite routine task and repairs and eliminate the quoting 215 
process on items up to that amount.  Ms. Mabry said Town Council asked that the ordinance be presented 216 
with a $2,500 limit, and she believed it was an oversight that it remained at $1,000.  Several councilmembers 217 
agreed with Ms. Mabry.  Ms. Fellner said that was a good idea; but, the change would allow department 218 
directors to have spending discretion up to $2,500.  Mr. Childs said he trusted the directors to manage their 219 
budgets appropriately.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples suggested that the limitations 220 
be evaluated in the future to ensure spending was on budget.   221 
  222 
 B.  First Reading Ordinance #14-0781 to amend §2-39(a) Agenda to establish authority to 223 
create, and 2-54(a) and (b) Appearance of Citizens to clarify agenda topic comments and number of 224 
speakers, Administrator Fellner. Ms. Fellner presented the decision paper that is on file.  Council concurred 225 
at the June 9 meeting to bring these sections for consideration in ordinance form to establish authority to add 226 
items to the agenda; to clarify that discussion is specifically for Town Council discussion; to clarify agenda 227 
comments may be on any agenda item, and to remove the limitation on the number of speakers per topic. 228 
 229 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 Mr. Magliette moved to adopt first reading or Ordinance #14-0781.  Mr. Childs seconded.  Mr. 230 
Magliette thanked Town Council for supporting the change to eliminate limiting the number of public speakers 231 
allowed on a particular topic.  He believed that every person’s comments were important and should be heard.  232 
All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 233 
 234 
 C.  Annual Turkey Trot, Request for 3-year Commitment, Mr. Verlon Wulf.  Mayor Samples 235 
introduced Mr. Wulf, president of the Surfside Area Rotary.  Mr. Wulf introduced Mr. Scott Jordan, secretary 236 
and president elect of the Rotary.  Rotary has sponsored the annual Turkey Trot on Thanksgiving Day for 237 
several years.  The Rotary partnered with an administrative group to operate and promote the Turkey Trot.  He 238 
asked council for a three year commitment so proper planning could be done.  Mr. Stevens moved to grant a 239 
three year commitment to Surfside Rotary for the annual Turkey Trot.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  Mr. Pellegrino 240 
said he and his children run the race every year.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 241 
 242 
 D.   Committee Appointments (may be deferred until after executive session.) 243 
  244 
 i.  GSW&S Authority Advisory Board – Mr. Joe Martin.  Mr. Stevens moved to appoint Mr. Martin to 245 
the Grand Strand Water and Sewer Authority Advisory Board.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  246 
MOTION CARRIED  247 
 248 
 ii.  Parking Committee – The Hon. Bob Childs, Council Liaison.  Mr. Stevens moved to appoint Mr. 249 
Childs council liaison to the parking committee.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  Mr. Childs said he could work well with 250 
the parking committee to make it more effective and productive.  He invited everyone to attend the meeting on 251 
Tuesday, June 24th at six o’clock at the fire station.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 252 
 253 
 8.  DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council. 254 
  255 
 Mayor Samples said the Lambries decision was overturned by the South Carolina Supreme Court, 256 
which means any concerns about bringing an item for discussion only under this heading is appropriate.  No 257 
action is taken during discussion.   258 
 259 
 Ms. Mabry said the town would be sponsoring a food drive throughout August to benefit South Strand 260 
Helping Hand.  Collection bins will be at the Bi-Low and Piggly Wiggly grocery stores, town hall reception, and 261 
the fire station.  If you cannot deliver your donation, someone will pick it up.  Mayor Samples said donations 262 
could be delivered to Helping Hand at 812 South Poplar Drive. 263 
 264 
 Mr. Childs thanked Mr. Magliette for coordinating the Meet N’ Greet breakfasts.  He believed they 265 
would be beneficial for everyone that attended. 266 
 267 
 9.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments (5 minutes.) 268 
 269 
 Mr. Gary White of Lakeside Drive said that Floral Lake is filled with floating seaweed, and there are 270 
branches from the ice storm protruding out of the water.  Now would be a good time to remove those 271 
branches, because the water is low.  He asked if anything could be done about the seaweed. 272 
 273 
 Ms. Patricia Magliette of Harbor Lights Drive reminded everyone that tomorrow is Runoff Election Day.  274 
Americans should exercise their right to vote, because it could affect what happens in Horry County. 275 
 276 
 Ms. Peggy Sattelmeyer of 13th Avenue North was happy to see council working together, but was 277 
disappointed the welcome signs were not included in the budget.  She suggested solar up-lighting be installed 278 
at the north end welcome signs.    279 
 280 
 Mr. Ed Hunt of Cypress Drive said many people were not aware that Helping Hand accepts clothing 281 
and household items in addition to food donations.  Lately, yard debris in his neighborhood has not been 282 
picked up regularly.  Sometimes it was up to three weeks before it was removed.  He said this was not a good 283 
way to present the town. 284 
 285 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 Ms. Holly Watson of North Oak Drive, a former road contractor, said the road money might be used to 286 
pay for stormwater projects on the town rights-of-way.  She said dog waste bag stations should be placed 287 
along Ocean Boulevard and town streets.  Grocery bags could be recycled in the dispensers.    288 
 289 
 10.  COUNCIL COMMENTS. 290 
 291 
 Ms. Mabry thanked everyone for attending.  She agreed with Ms. Watson’s comments about the dog 292 
waste bag stations.  Town Council discussed this proposal for over a year and thought there might be funds to 293 
do something now.  294 
 295 
 Mr. Magliette thanked everyone for attending and sharing their comments.  He thanked all the town 296 
volunteers, particularly Dora Eaddy and Peggy Sattelmeyer who planted vinca flowers at the south end 297 
welcome sign.  Ms. Sattelmeyer also waters the hanging baskets at the pier.  Without volunteers the town 298 
would not have such beautiful landscape.  Adopt-a-Beach will meet at 10th Avenue South Saturday at 7:00 299 
a.m., if anyone wants to help.  Surfside Library is hosting a program on estate and probate administration on 300 
June 26th at 4:00 p.m.  During June, the Food Lion Feeds Grand Strand Seniors provided groceries for 27 301 
seniors at the South Strand Senior Center.  The Senior Center is hosting a barbeque on July 3rd.  He thanked 302 
everyone for their donations, and offers of assistance.  Contact him if there are questions about any of his 303 
comments.  He wished everyone a wonderful 4th of July.  God bless you. 304 
 305 
 Mr. Childs commended Ms. Watson for her comments about the dog waste problem.  Every council 306 
has wrestled with that problem, and he welcomed a solution.  Even if dogs are small, when there are several 307 
hundred dogs, it does impact the town.    308 
 309 
 Mr. Johnson thanked everyone for attending and encouraged them to vote.  God bless you. 310 
 311 
 Mr. Stevens thanked everyone for attending.  He was glad Town Council supported Freedom of 312 
Speech.  Please vote.  He commended public works for the 3rd Avenue South project, which would probably 313 
last until great-great grandchildren visit town. 314 
 315 
 Mr. Pellegrino thanked everyone for attending.  Three members were sworn in shortly before the 316 
budget process began.  It was a great learning experience for him.  He was humbled to learn that it was much 317 
more difficult to prepare a government budget than a corporate budget, because there are so many 318 
restrictions.  Past councils have done good things with the budget.  The town has no debt other than some 319 
leases, and past budgets included savings and reserves.  Money was saved, for instance, to buy trash trucks.  320 
Interaction between administration and councilmembers was good.  Sessions were constructive.  He did not 321 
agree with everything, but councilmembers were passionate about their points.  Expenditures were added that 322 
he did not agree with, but he understood those who supported the projects really believed it was necessary.  323 
He challenged everyone as future budgets were prepared to compare revenue to expenditures, and to look at 324 
the unassigned account in the general fund, which is the town’s emergency fund that should continually 325 
increase.  If the unassigned fund was increasing, then the council was doing a good job with the budget.  He 326 
challenged everyone to consider pure revenue versus pure expenses when preparing future budgets.  He 327 
reiterated appreciation for council and administration for helping him learn about government budgets.  He 328 
encouraged everyone to vote tomorrow.  God bless everyone. 329 
 330 
 Mayor Samples thanked everyone for attending.  He asked Mr. Adair to check Floral Lake to see if 331 
there was anything that could be done.  Based on comments heard by Town Council, he believed town 332 
residents understood what they get for their tax dollars and they recognize that it had to be paid for.  He 333 
understood that business owners and investors were looking to avoid any additional expenses.  The town is 334 
safe; public safety is the number one priority.  People live here, because they want a small, family oriented 335 
town.  Except when the town streets were originally paved, past councils have operated the town on a “pay as 336 
you go” philosophy.  Council needs to continue doing so, because if there is a major emergency the town may 337 
need to borrow money.  There is no way to budget for every contingency.      338 
 339 
 340 
 341 
 342 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
June 23, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 343 
 344 
 A.  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment of a person to a public body 345 
(Addressed in Business Item 7.D.) 346 
    347 
 B.  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(2) to discuss proposed contractual arrangements.  348 
 349 
 Mr. Johnson moved to enter executive session pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(2) at 8:12 p.m.  Ms. 350 
Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mr. Johnson moved to reconvene regular session 351 
at 8:40 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said that no 352 
action was taken during executive session. 353 
 354 
 12.  ADJOURNMENT.   355 
 356 
 Mr. Johnson moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  357 
MOTION CARRIED. 358 
 359 
      Prepared and submitted by, 360 
 361 
      _____________________________________________  362 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 363 
Approved:  July 8, 2014 364 

 365 
___________________________________ 366 

Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 367 
         368 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 369 
David L. Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council    370 
 371 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 372 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary M. Mabry, Town Council 373 
 374 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 375 
Ralph J. Magliette, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council  376 
 377 
 378 
Clerk’s Note:  This document constitutes summary minutes of the meeting that was digitally recorded.  Audio 379 
recordings are published on the town website after the meeting (approximately two weeks) until the minutes 380 
are approved and published.  You may download the recording to your personal computer from the website, or 381 
bring a flash drive to the town clerk to obtain a copy.  Appointments to hear or to obtain copies of recordings 382 
should be scheduled with the town clerk, telephone 843.913.6333.  In accordance with FOIA, meeting notice 383 
and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties. The agenda was posted on the town 384 
website, the entry door at Town Council Chambers, and in the Town Hall reception area.  Meeting notice was 385 
also posted on the Town marquee. 386 
 387 



0 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

    Surfside Beach Fire Department 
Town Council Report 

July 08, 2014 

 
 

Submitted By 

Daniel J. Cimini 
Fire Chief 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

The following is an activity report of the operations of the Fire Department from 
June 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014 

Mutual Aid / Auto Aid 
Mutual Aid {Given}    1 

Mutual Aid {Received}    1  

Automatic Aid {Given}   8 

Automatic Aid {Received}          12 

 

Fire Runs  

Building Fire    2 

Outside Equipment Fire    0  

Mobile Property, Vehicle Fire    1 

Arcing wire    2 

Brush, brush/grass mixture             0 

Dumpster, Rubbish, Other    7 

Fire Other    2 

Illegal Burning                                            1 

                                         Total            15 

 

Rescue/Emergency Medical Incident  

Rescue/EMS other     7 
Medical Assist, assist EMS Crew            81 
Pedestrian Motor Vehicle Accident             5 
Motor Vehicle Accident/no injuries     8 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with injuries    3 
Motor Vehicle Accident/with Entrapment    3 
                                         Total           107 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

Hazardous Condition / No Fire  

Power line Down      0 

Vehicle Accident, General Cleanup     1 

Hazardous Condition      1 

Gas Leak {Natural – Propane}      0 

                                          Total      2 

Service Call  

Smoke or Odor Removal      0 

Person in Distress, other      1 

Lock Out      1 

Assist Invalid      9 

Service Call, other                                        2 

Unauthorized Burning                                  1 

Cover Assignment, Stand By, / Move-up     0 

Elevator Rescue      0 

Public Service Assistance, Other                 1  

Water Problem, Other       2  

                                           Total     17 

 

Good Intent Call  

Dispatched & Cancelled en-route              14 
Other      1 

Assist Police Other      1 

                                           Total    16 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

False Alarm/False Call  

Alarm System Activation, No Fire               6 

False Alarm or False Call, No Fire     5 

System Malfunction     1 

Smoke Detector Activation              3 

Sprinkler Activation, No Fire     0 

No Incident Found     1 

                                            Total   16 

Total Incidents: 

Total Incidents June 2014                   173  

Lost Estimates:  

Estimated loss by Fire for June 2014:   $ 0,000.00  

 

Additional information for June  
 All SCBA’s {Self Contained Breathing Apparatus} monthly tests per NFPA requirements and 
repairs made; adjustments and battery replacements were completed. 

Monthly Turnout Gear inspection completed per NFPA Requirements. 

All apparatus equipment checked and inventories verified for compliance to ISO, OSHA and 
NFPA requirements.   

Surfside Beach Fire Department Volunteer staffing levels remained the same, however we did 
get 3 new Volunteer Firefighters and 3 new Junior Firefighters, this now gives the department 6 
Junior Firefighters, we lost three firefighters who have taken on jobs that will not allow them to 
fulfill their obligations to SBFD.  

The pier standpipe system was repaired by an outside fire and pressure tested by the fire 
department.  Thank you to Building Official Kevin Otte for assisting the department in making 
sure that the work was done to code.  Facilities Supervisor Dennis Todd worked with everyone 
to complete this project prior to the Fourth of July celebration, without his help and imput the 
project may not have been completed in time. 

 

 
 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

 

Fire Prevention Activities  

Completed Inspections                 4      
Re-Inspections                      1 
New Business Inspections                          6 

Pre Fire Plans {New}                 4   

Pre-Plans Revised / Up-Dated                  76 

Fire Station Visits                6 

Public Education Events                   8 
Childs Birthday Party @ Fire Station          1 

Child Car Seat Inspection / Installs             0     

 

Total Fire Prevention Activities:    

During the month the new businesses were inspected in accordance with State, NFPA and ICC 
codes. Monthly Safety Inspection of Town Hall, Police Station, and Conference Center and 
Rescue Squad were completed. 

The final touches were put on the Citizens Fire Academy and the application will go on line 
August 1, 2014 for the first class.  

The South Carolina State Fire Chiefs Association gave the “Richard S. Campbell Award” to the 
department for “Excellence in Fire and Life Safety Education”.  We received a plaque and a 
check for $250.00 to purchase fire and Life Safety education material. 

We received a $1,000.00 fire prevention grant from Walmart for our fire prevention activities and 
supplies. 

 

 

 

 

 



5 | P a g e  

 

Training 

Volunteer and Career personnel dedicated 196 hours to training and 224 hours responding to 
calls during the month. 

During the month of June, the training drill topics were extrication, fit testing, and 1410 
drills.  
 
Volunteer and career personnel reviewed the principles of extricating victims from 
automobile accidents and practiced the techniques required to perform those 
operations, like Incident Command, Stabilizing the Vehicle, and Package and 
Removal of Victims.  
 
Fit testing - to ensure the proper use and correct size of the SCBA mask given to 
each Firefighter in fire suppression.   
 
1410 drills -   A 3 Man Company deploying a master stream device and making a 
hydrant connection before running out of tank water. Using 200ft of 2.5 inch hose and 
100ft of 5 inch hose 
 
Career personnel has completed the Municipal Association of South Carolina {Risk 
Management Services on line training} to receive an additional 4 hours of on-line training during 
the month.  

All career personnel continue to do the Centrelearn training to keep up their skills and 
knowledge to stay up of the national trends as a First Responder. There are several different 
classes each month taken for additional 2-4 hours training. 

 Career personnel attended the required drills to meet their training hours to comply with ISO 
and NFPA requirements. 

Staff Report 

Captain Prentice Williams {Training Officer}:   
Captain Williams continues to research training needs for our career and volunteer members.  

He continues to work with the area departments on joint training and teaching our personnel on 
the skills needed to be efficient at emergencies.  During the month of Junel he along with the 
other Captains continue conducting drills with the volunteers that consisted of driver operator 
drills on a one on one basis in addition to the standard Monday evening drills. 

He continues to hold the CPR Classes, attended by both in town and out of town residents. 
Town Safety Training conducted each month to keep the town in compliance with our insurance 
carrier’s requirements.  

He is preparing the training for the month of May which will be centered on Motor Cycle 
Accidents and the ISO required night drill and the required multi-company drill..  

Captain Williams is an outstanding employee. 

 



6 | P a g e  

 

Captain Robert Packard {Technical Services Officer}:   
Captain Packard continues to work on updating inventories of fire hose, SCBA’s, nozzles, fire 
gear and other small equipment in the department.   

He is continuing to enter inventory Fire Programs and is continuing installing asset tags on all 
equipment that will have identifier numbers so that items identified by type, date in service and 
replacement dates match what is in Fire Program’s inventory.  

He has also been overseeing the station maintenance and cleaning supplies needed to 
complete that assignment. He has been working with DP3 and several of the suppliers 
regarding issues with the solar panel system due some design issues. He has been doing a 
great job staying on top of the problem.  

Captain Packard is responsible for Technical Services {the facilities overall, equipment 
inspections, inventories, turn-out gear checks} and apparatus maintenance scheduling and 
repairs.   

He is doing a good job and is a very good employee. 

 
Captain Ted Sacra {Fire Prevention Officer}:   
Captain Sacra is handling the fire prevention activities and inspections.  

He has put a lot of time in on the inspections and pre-plans getting ready for the ISO re-
evaluation. The records are now up-to-date and being entered in fire programs. He has been 
overseeing the map book up-dates so we can provide these to or auto-aid and mutual aid 
companies. 

Captain Sacra is in the process of making sure that we have pre-plans on every commercial 
building in town and that they show the square footage, electrical panel, closest hydrants, 
hazards and many items needed by the incident commander in the event of a fire. 

He is a model employee who strides to make improvements and is always willing to take on new 
assignments. 

 
Engineer Tom Zimpleman {Engineer Firefighter II}: 
Engineer Zimpleman continues to be an excellent employee; he has been assisting Captain 
Packard on different projects that include station inventories, equipment placement on the 
apparatus and facilities maintenance.  

He has been attending EMT certification classes and will complete the program in August.  The 
training course is a very demanding one that requires many house of his personal time to 
complete. This is not a required course for his job description; he is improving his skills to serve 
the town better 

He is a great asset to the department and is a hardworking employee. 

 
 
 
 



7 | P a g e  

 

Engineer Larry Carter {Engineer Firefighter II}: 
Engineer Carter has been working on the map book up-dates and has been assisting Captain 
Williams with training and developing programs used in the training classes. Larry is always 
ready to assist with any projects that come up.  

He has been given the task of surveying the hydrants in town and preparing a report of needs. 

He is consistent and a hard worker, a good employee who is always on time and is always 
looking for something to do. 

Engineer James Behrens {Engineer Firefighter II}:  
Engineer Behrens is very eager to learn and has been doing a good job. He has been working 
with Captain Sacra on the pre-plans and inspections.  He will be attending the next fire inspector 
class offered by the South Carolina Fire Academy.   I am very pleased with his work ethic and 
his want to learn. He is a very good employee. 
Chief’s Comments:  
The month of June was a very busy one with preparation for the ISO evaluation and a high call 
volume. We received twenty {20} applications to create a list for the Engineer/Firefighter II 
position.  The list will be good for two {2} years and will be used to fill any vacancy’s that may 
occur in that period.  A written test and agility test administered to determine the order the 
applicants’ eligibility for possible employment. 

The advertisement for my position posted and we are receiving quite a few applications.  The 
posting will end on July 18, 2014 and we will begin the task of reviewing and evaluating the 
applications. 

The selection process will begin with the selection of 10 applicants that best meet the 
requirements of the position, that list narrowed to five or six people through visits to the town 
and interviews with the fire chief. Then a select group of South Carolina Fire Professionals, who 
will select three for interviews with the Town Manager, the successful candidates name 
presented to Mayor and Council for approval.  

The ISO Re-evaluation conducted on June 10, 2014 with results in approximately 3 to 4 months. 
I believe that the evaluation went well and it is my hope we gained enough points to increase 
our rating to a Class 2.  There are many items that determine the classification therefore it is 
very difficult to determine where we stand. We do have a few issues with fire hydrant locations 
that need to be addressed; we are working on a report for Mayor and Council that should be 
ready about September 1st or sooner. 

I would like to thank the Officers of the Surfside Beach Police Department for all the support 
during the month assisting the FD on calls. 

During the month, I attended the Southeastern Association of Fire Chiefs Conference, the South 
Carolina Fire Chiefs Conference, the Horry Georgetown Fire Chiefs meeting and performed 8 
hours of in-service training.  

Respectfully Submitted 

Daniel J. Cimini 
Chief of Department 

































































































































Decision Paper 
 
Written by:  Debbie Ellis and Micki Fellner 
 
1.  SUBJECT: First Reading of Ordinance #14-0782 to adopt rental fees for 

the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and Floral Clubhouse 
 
2.  PURPOSE: To establish rental fees for two town facilities that more than cover 

cleaning costs.  Rental fees have never been established by 
ordinance for the use of the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center or Floral 
Clubhouse, and have never been sufficient to cover maintenance or 
cleaning fees.   

 
3.  ASSUMPTIONS:  

(a) Groups and organizations will continue to use the facilities. 
(b) By establishing fees, the fees can be used to absorb the cost of cleaning 

the facilities in a manner that people expect when being charged a fee.   
 (c) Fees will be collected for groups as prescribed by ordinance. 
 (d) Town Council desires to have the facilities used by the community at a 
reasonable cost  
 
4.  FACTS: 
 (a)   Town Council heard a presentation about raising fees during the April 30 
and May 1 budget workshop and subsequently concurred to have an ordinance brought 
for consideration 
 (b)  Fees were not paid by a majority of users within the Civic Center  
 (c) Funds were being paid (donated) for the use of the center by some 
  organizations, but not all.  

(d) Establishing fees by ordinance will ensure that all renters pay a 
reasonable amount at a rate approved by Town Council  

    
5.  IMPACT OF SUCCESS OR FAILURE: 
 (a)  Failure to implement the fees will result in a significant continued shortfall in 
revenue to maintain and operate the facilities 
 (b)  Implementing the ordinance will codify the fee schedule and associated 
rules. 
 (c)  Implementing the fees will bring in additional revenue to offset cleaning costs 
and some maintenance.  
  
6.  RECOMMENDATION:  Approve as presented. 
 
7.  RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of the ordinance as presented 
will codify fees for all users; ensure that the facilities are well maintained and sufficient 
revenue is generated for operation without additional expense to the town’s taxpayers.   



Ordinance No.  14-0782 
First Reading:  06/09/2014  

Second Reading: ___________  
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) PROVIDING THAT TOWN CODE OF ORDINANCES,   
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  CHAPTER 4 BE AMENDED TO ADD ARTICLE VIII, RENTAL  
    ) FEES FOR DICK M. JOHNSON CIVIC CENTER, AND 
SURFSIDE BEACH  )  FLORAL CLUBHOUSE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in council duly 
assembled desire to establish fees for the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and the Floral 
Clubhouse; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Town Council concurred to adoption of said fees at its April 30th and May 
1st, 2014 budget workshop; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside Beach reviews its fees and charges and makes 
adjustments as necessary to assist the maintenance of its real property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council deem that the fee schedule should be 
reasonable and codified. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Chapter 4, Article VIII of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina, is hereby adopted and shall state:  
 
 CHAPTER 4.  ARTICLE VIII.  Rental Fees – Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and 
Floral Clubhouse 
 
 1.  On-going Fee Schedule.  Rates for the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and the Floral 
Clubhouse for on-going meetings, events, or programs shall be:    
  
 GROUP, ORGANIZATION OR BUSINESS Rate 
 

Non-Profit Groups    $25 per day 
Weekly Groups and Organizations  $50 per day 
Business Organizations   Town Business License plus10% of monthly  

       revenue payable by the 5th day of the following  
       month 
 
 2.  One-time Rental Schedules.  Rates for the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center and the 
Floral Clubhouse for one time rentals for a meeting, an event, or a program shall be: 

 
ONE TIME RENTALS    Rate 
 
Dick M. Johnson Civic Center – Large Room $75 
Dick M. Johnson Civic Center – Small Room $50 
Floral Clubhouse     $50 

  
3.  Town Discretion to Rent.  The town in its sole discretion reserves the right to deny 

rental for any reason. 
 



Ordinance No.  14-0782 
First Reading:  06/09/2014  

Second Reading: ___________  
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

4.  Town Reserves the Right to Pre-empt Rental.  The Town of Surfside Beach 
reserves the right to pre-empt any regularly scheduled or one-time event for town business.  In 
such instances, the rental fee shall be refunded, if already paid. 

 
5.  Rental Fees and Late Penalty.   
 
A.  Group, Organization or Business on-going rentals.  Should any fee not be paid in 

accordance with the terms of this ordinance, a 20-percent late fee per month shall be applied.  
Failure to pay shall be deemed reasonable cause to refuse future rentals.  

 
B.  One time rentals.  Payment for one time rentals are payable in advance. 
 
6.  Cleaning Deposit.  A cleaning deposit of fifty ($50) dollars per rental may be 

required to be paid in advance at the sole discretion of the recreation supervisor or her 
designee.  The recreation supervisor or her designee shall have sole authority to determine 
whether facilities are cleaned in a manner that would warrant a refund.   

 
SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance or 

the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall 
not affect the other provisions of this article, which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this article are declared to be 
severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several sections 
hereof shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction, interpretation or effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 
approval at second reading by the Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ___ day of 
_______ 2014. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
David Pellegrino, Mayor Pro Tempore   Robert F. Childs, Town Council   
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Mary M. Mabry, Town Council 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Randle M. Stevens, Town Council   Ralph Magliette, Town Council  
     
     Attest:  _______________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 



Decision Paper 
 
Written by:  John Adair and Debra Herrmann 
 
1.  SUBJECT:  Business Item 8.C., Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful Committee (KSBB) Re-
appropriation, Hanging Baskets, Administrator Fellner 
 
2.  PURPOSE:  To determine whether the hanging basket beautification project will 
continue, and if so, funding determined and maintenance assigned  
 
3.  ASSUMPTIONS:  
 (a) Town Council desires to continue the hanging basket beautification project 
 (b) KSBB desires to keep improving the town’s aesthetics  
 (c) Staff estimates that the amount of $15,000 will be sufficient to fund the   
 remainder of this season and spring of 2015 
 
4.  FACTS: 
 (a)  KSBB presented a recommendation for hanging baskets to Town Council at the July 
23, 2013 Town Council meeting    
 (b)  KSBB assumed responsibility for designing and maintaining four hanging baskets at 
the Surfside pier until December 31, 2013  
 (c)  It was determined that hospitality funds could pay for the project at the pier 
 (d)  Town Council concurred to the project but no more than $500 could be spent 
 (e)  In January 2014, KSBB reported that the hanging basket project was successful 
 (f)  KSBB proposed that hanging baskets continue to be placed at the pier; and also to 
add them along Surfside Drive, and hire a company to maintain them at a cost of about $13,636 
for supplies and flowers, including maintenance at about $4,800 per year. 
 (g)  Town Council concurred to beautification of the Surfside Drive business district and 
the pier parking lot; if funds were available, beautification would be done on Ocean Boulevard 
between 3rd Avenues North and South 
 
5.  IMPACT OF SUCCESS OR FAILURE: 
 (a)  Failure to approve the beautification project will result in the existing baskets being 
maintained by public works, but no new baskets would be added.  
 (b)  Success will be achieved by maintaining the existing baskets, and beautifying other 
districts as mentioned in 4.(g)     
 
6.  RECOMMENDATION; 
 a.  Approve $15,000, which would be a budget amendment to the FY14-15 Municipal 
Budget, to maintain hanging baskets at the pier, and to add baskets in the Surfside Drive 
business district, and if there are sufficient funds, on Ocean Boulevard between 3rd Avenues 
North and South. 
 b.  RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION:  The Town of Surfside Beach prides itself 
on being the Family Beach, such beautification projects enhance the family atmosphere in the 
town, and make it more welcoming to tourists, visitors and resident.  





1

Debra Herrmann

From: Surfside Beach Info [mailinglist@surfsidebeach.org]
Sent: Thursday, July 03, 2014 11:04 AM
To: dherrmann@surfsidebeach.org
Subject: Public Notice - Town Council Meeting and Parking Committee Meeting
Attachments: 07082014_tc_agenda.pdf; 07082014_tc_agenda_5_062314_meeting_minutes_draft.pdf; 

07082014_tc_agenda_7ai_fire_report.pdf; 07082014_tc_agenda_7aii_planning_report.pdf; 
07082014_tc_agenda_7aiii_police_report.pdf; 07082014_tc_agenda_8a_2nd_rdg_14_0781
_public_comments_and_agenda.pdf; 07082014_tc_agenda_8b_1st_rdg_14_0782
_fees_civic_center.pdf; 07082014_tc_agenda_8c_ksbb_hanging_basket_project.pdf

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING - Tuesday, July 8, 2014, 6:30 p.m. in 
Council Chambers.  

The agenda and supporting documents are attached to this message.  You may also view them 
at http://www.surfsidebeach.org/agenda-2014.html (click on the blue links to open 
documents.)     

A printed copy is available in the town clerk’s office for public inspection prior to the meeting.  

The public is invited to attend all meetings. Time is allotted at regular meetings for public 
comments on agenda items and general comments. 

  

  

The Parking Committee will meet Thursday, July 10, 2014, at 9:00 a.m. at the Fire 
Station.   

  

  

This transmission is pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act §30-4-80. 

 

-- 
If you do not want to receive any more newsletters, click "UNSUBSCRIBE" this link 
 
To update your preferences or to unsubscribe, please click "PREFERENCES" this link 
 
To forward a message to someone, please click "FORWARD" this link 

 




